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May 16, 2003

Mr. [REDACTED]


[REDACTED]                                                                      

[REDACTED]

                                                                                                RE:  MV01002997
                                                                                            Mr. [REDACTED]
                                                                                            Unnamed ([REDACTED])
                                                                                            $750.00

Dear Mr. [REDACTED]:

The Commanding Officer, Coast Guard Hearing Office, Arlington, Virginia, has forwarded the file in Civil Penalty Case MV01002997, which includes your appeal as owner of the unnamed recreational vessel [REDACTED].  The appeal is from the action of the Hearing Officer in assessing a $750.00 penalty for the following violation:

	Law/Regulation
	Nature of Violation
	Assessed Penalty

	46 USC 2302(c)
	Operation of a vessel while intoxicated.
	$750.00


The violation was observed on May 18, 2001, when Tennessee Valley Authority (TVA) Police boarded your vessel ([REDACTED]) on Lake Fontana, in Graham County, North Carolina.  Their report was subsequently forwarded to the U.S. Coast Guard for initiation of civil penalty action. 

On appeal, you deny the violation and contend that you were “not driving the boat when officers pulled up.”  Instead, you claim that “[t]he boat was sitting dead still and no motor was running.”  You further assert that “[t]here was no other sobriety test other than the machine,” and contend that the chemical test results are “hard to believe” because three other people have since been ticketed and registered “16”.  Your appeal is denied for the reasons given below.  

I will begin by addressing your contention that you were not operating the vessel at the time of the boarding.  Although you contend that, when you were boarded, your vessel was “sitting dead in the water and…[that its] motor was not running,” the rebuttal comments submitted by the boarding officer clearly indicate that you were, in fact, operating the vessel at the time of the boarding.  Officer [REDACTED] of the TVA first noticed your vessel underway as it entered Panther Creek.  He stated that he “followed behind the vessel for approximately one-half mile” and that you were “operating the boat the entire time.”  In addition, in your letter of December 29, 2001, to Commander [REDACTED], you clearly indicated that you had operated the vessel for over five miles prior to the stop.  The mere fact that you may have come to a stop at the time of the boarding and shut down your motor does not excuse your conduct.  Given the boarding officer’s statement, as well as you own, I find sufficient evidence in the record to conclude that you were, in fact, operating the vessel.    

I will now address the violation.  Under 33 CFR 95.030 “[a]cceptable evidence of intoxication includes, but is not limited to: (a) Personal observation of an individual’s manner, disposition, speech, muscular movement, general appearance, or behavior; or (b) A chemical test.”  33 CFR 95.020(c) further provides that an individual is considered intoxicated when, “[t]he individual is operating any vessel and the effect of the intoxicant(s) consumed by the individual on the person’s manner, disposition, speech, muscular movement, general appearance or behavior is apparent by observation.”  The TVA BUI Field Sobriety Test Performance Report indicates that you had a “strong” odor of alcohol on your breath and that your speech was “mumbled,” “confused” and “stuttered.”  In addition, the report indicates that your face was “flushed,” your eyes were “bloodshot,” and that you were “talkative.”  The record further shows, contrary to your assertion, that you were given three Field Sobriety Tests (FSTs), in addition to the chemical test, and that you performed poorly on all three.  On the “Finger Count” test, you “[m]iscounted” and improperly touched and counted your fingers.  Likewise, on the “Palm Pat” test, you “[d]id not speed up” and incorrectly counted.  Finally, on the “Horizontal Gaze Nystagmus” test, you showed a lack of smooth pursuit and distinct nystagmus at max deviation, onset prior to 45 degrees, in both eyes.  In addition, the written supplement to the boarding report indicates that additional FSTs, including the “alphabet” test and the “counting” test were not administered “because of the obvious impairment of…[your]…speech.”  Furthermore, the written supplement indicates that, during the boarding, the boarding officer “saw an opened container of beer between…[your]…legs.”   While I agree that each of these factors, alone, might not have been sufficient cause for a conclusion of intoxication, taken together, I am persuaded that the results of the FSTs and the personal observations of the TVA boarding officer regarding your manner, disposition, speech, muscular movement, and behavior constituted substantial evidence for the Hearing Officer to conclude that you were intoxicated under 33 CFR 95.030.    

Although I have concluded that there was substantial evidence in the record to support a conclusion of intoxication absent the administration of a chemical test, I believe a discussion of the chemical test is relevant under the circumstances of this case.  The record indicates that you were found to have a blood alcohol content of 0.175% following the administration of the chemical test in issue.  Although you contend that the chemical test results are unreliable, there is no evidence in the case file to conclude otherwise.  First, your assertion that three other people subsequently were ticketed and registered “16” is inconclusive.  The number 16 does not correspond to any standard associated with blood-alcohol content.  Nor is there any evidence regarding the time, place, and circumstances surrounding the chemical testing of these three other people.  In short, you have provided no evidence to support your assertion.  Furthermore, there is evidence in the record to support a conclusion that the machine was, contrary to your assertion, operated and functioning correctly.  First, the boarding officer provided a copy of his “Certificate of Training,” indicating that he “successfully completed the DWI and Standardized Filed Sobriety Testing Course.”  Furthermore, the boarding report clearly indicates that the machine used for the chemical test was calibrated on April 28, 2001, just 21 days before the boarding.  Given this information, I find the chemical test results to be reliable.  Therefore, I believe that the Hearing Officer would be correct to conclude that you were intoxicated based upon either 33 CFR 95.030(a) or 33 CFR 95.030(b).     

Accordingly, I find that there is substantial evidence in the record to support the Hearing Officer’s determination that the violation occurred and that you are the responsible party.  The Hearing Officer’s decision was neither arbitrary nor capricious and is hereby affirmed.  I find the $750.00 penalty assessed, rather than the $5,000.00 maximum permitted by statute to be appropriate in light of the seriousness of the violation.  

Should you believe that you are financially unable to pay this penalty, you may request the establishment of a payment plan.  Requests for relief should be directed to the Chief, Claims Branch, Maintenance and Logistics Command Pacific, Coast Guard Island, Alameda, California 94501-5100.  

In accordance with the regulations governing civil penalty proceedings, 33 CFR 1.07, this decision constitutes final agency action.  Payment of $750.00 by check or money order payable to the U.S. Coast Guard is due and should be remitted promptly, accompanied by a copy of this letter.  Send your payment to:

U.S. Coast Guard - Civil Penalties
P.O. Box 100160
Atlanta, GA  30384

Payments received within 30 days will not accrue interest.  However, interest at the annual rate of 4.25% accrues from the date of this letter if payment is not received within 30 days.  Payments received after 30 days will be assessed an administrative charge of $12.00 per month for the cost of collecting the debt.  If the debt remains unpaid for over 90 days, a 6% per annum late payment penalty will be assessed on the balance of the debt, the accrued interest, and administrative costs.


                                                             Sincerely,


                                                              //S//


david j. kantor

Deputy Chief,

Office of Maritime and International Law 

By direction of the Commandant

Copy:  Commanding Officer, Coast Guard Hearing Office 

            Commanding Officer, Coast Guard Finance Center 
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